
 
**PERSONAL AUDIO ENHANCERS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE COUNCIL 

SECRETARY**
AGENDA FOR REGULAR ELKHART CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

LOCATION:  CITY HALL, 2ND FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
March 17, 2025 

6:00 P.M. 
 

1.   Call to Order, Pledge, Moment of Silent Meditation, Roll Call 
 
2.       Minutes for Approval  

Minutes of March 3, 2025  Council Meeting 
    

 Presentations and Introductions 
 Presentation  Dana Donald, Community Development 
 
 Unfinished Business 
 
 Reports of Council Committees  

      
a) Ordinances on Second-Third Reading  

 
b) Ordinances and Resolutions Referred to Committees 

There are no Ordinances or Resolutions referred to committees 
 
Tabled Ordinances and Resolutions  

       There are no tabled Ordinances or Resolutions 
 
3.       New Business 

 
a) Ordinances on First Reading 

Proposed Ordinance 25-O-08, an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 5963, 
establishing rates and charges for the use of, and services rendered by, the 
Water Utility System of the City of Elkhart, Indiana, by replacing Appendix A 
and Appendix B, as approved by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission 
Proposed Ordinance 25-O-09, an ordinance appropriating Eight Million 
Nine Hundred Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars ($8,984,000.00) from the 
General Fund for the new Fire Station Six (6) 
 

b) Resolutions 
Proposed Resolution 25-R-05, a resolution of the Common Council of the 
City of Elkhart, Indiana, declaring a certain area to be an Economic 
Revitalization Area for the purpose of granting Tax Phase-In benefits to 
Jacobs and Thompson LTD, DBA Worldwide Foam\CJSB Properties, Inc. 
 

c) Vacation Hearings 
      There are no vacation hearings. 

   
     



d) Other New Business 

e) Reports of Mayor, Board of Works, Board of Safety or City Departments
 

f) Neighborhood Association Report 
 

g) Privilege of the Floor 
                  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes to allow others time to comment 
 

h) Scheduling of Committee Meetings 
 

i) Acceptance of Communications 
Minutes of January 29, 2025  Board of Aviation Commissioners 
Minutes of February 25, 2025  Board of Public Safety 
Minutes of February 18, 2025  Board of Public Works 
Minutes of February 12, 2025  Lerner Theatre Board 
Minutes of December 19, 2024  Stormwater Board 

 
 Adjournment 

 

















































Proposed Ordinance No. 25-O-08
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M

Date: February 27, 2025

To: Arvis Dawson, Elkhart City Council President 

From: Tory Irwin, Director of Public Works

RE: Ordinance Request - Proposed Amended Water Utility Rate Increase 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 5963, ESTABLISHING RATES AND CHARGES FOR THE USE OF,
AND SERVICES RENDERED BY, THE WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA, BY REPLACING 

APPENDIX A AND APPENDIX B, AS APPROVED BY THE INDIANA UTILITY REGULATORY COMMISSION

On December 4, 2023, the Common Council adopted Ordinance No. 5963, establishing the rates 
and charges for the use of the Water Utility System of the City of Elkhart, Indiana, and for the 
services rendered by the Utility. 

The rates adopted under Ordinance No. 5963 marked the first increase in fifteen (15) years. The 
increase was necessary for the Utility to maintain compliance with new EPA unfunded mandates 
for the remediation of lead service lines, as well as to allow the city to maintain its aging water 
infrastructure assets, and offset increases in the operational costs of the Utility, due to inflation in 
the costs of chemicals, materials, energy, and labor.  

The Water Utility System of the City of Elkhart is regulated by the Indiana Utility Regulatory 
Commission (IURC). As such, Ordinance No. 5963 was adopted by the Council, subject to the 
approval of the IURC. On February 27, 2025, the IURC approved, with minor reductions, the rates
reflected in Appendix A (Schedule of Rates and Charges for the City of Elkhart Water Utility) of 
Ordinance 5963; and on March 12, 2025, the IURC, approved, with minor reductions, the charges 
reflected in Appendix B (Schedule of Nonrecurring Charges for the City of Elkhart Water Utility). 

Proposed Ordinance No. 25-O-08, if adopted by the Council, would amend Ordinance No. 5963, 
to codify the rates and charges approved by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission. 



Proposed Ordinance No. 25-O-08 

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 5963, ESTABLISHING RATES AND 
CHARGES FOR THE USE OF, AND SERVICES RENDERED BY, THE WATER 
UTILITY SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA, BY REPLACING  

APPENDIX A AND APPENDIX B, AS APPROVED BY THE  
INDIANA UTILITY REGULATORY COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the City of Elkhart, Indiana ("City") owns, operates and maintains a 

municipal water utility system (the “Utility”) to provide safe drinking water for the benefit of the 

citizens of Elkhart; and

WHEREAS, the Utility operates under the jurisdiction of the Indiana Utility Regulatory 

Commission, which must approve all changes to rates, recurring and nonrecurring charges for 

water and services rendered by the Utility; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City (“Council”) adopted Ordinance No. 5963 

amending rates, charges and nonrecurring charges for the water and services rendered by the 

Utility; and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 5963 was adopted, subject to the approval of the Indiana 

Utility Regulatory Commission (IURC).  

WHEREAS, on February 27, 2025, the IURC approved, with minor reductions, the rates 

reflected in Appendix A (Schedule of Rates and Charges for the City of Elkhart Water Utility); 

and on March 12, 2025, the IURC, with minor downward adjustments, approved the charges 

reflected in Appendix B (Schedule of Nonrecurring Charges for the City of Elkhart Water 

Utility). 



WHEREAS, on March 4, 2025, the Board of Public Works and Utilities (“Board”) 

adopted Resolution No. 25-R-03, recommending that the Council amend Ordinance No. 5963, 

to reflect the approvals of the IURC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The recurring rates and charges set out in Appendix A, attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, and non-recurring charges set out in Appendix B, attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, are hereby adopted and established as the rates and charges for the 

use of and the services rendered by the Water Utility System of the City of Elkhart, Indiana.

Section 2.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance 

are repealed upon this Ordinance becoming effective, as set forth herein.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in effect from and after its passage by the Common 

Council, and approval by the Mayor.

[Balance of page is intentionally blank.]  



APPENDIX A 

Schedule of Rates and Charges for the City of Elkhart Water Utility 

The rates and charges listed below shall become effective: 

Phase I:  Immediately following the passage of this Ordinance. 

Phase II: No more than thirty (30) days before the closing of any Series 2026 debt.

Phase III: No more than thirty (30) days before the closing of any Series 2027 debt. 

(A) Monthly metered rates. Each customer shall be charged the following rates based upon the 
use of water supplied by the Water Utility.

Phase I Phase II Phase III
Monthly Metered Rates 

(per 1,000 gallons)
First 29,900 gallons $               2.58 $                          2.66 $                         2.74 
Next 553,500 gallons                   1.99                               2.05  2.11  
Next 508,600 gallons                   1.59                               1.64  1.69  
Over 1,092,000 gallons                   1.34                               1.39  1.43  

     
Monthly Metered Rates 

(per 100 cubic feet)     
First 4,000 cubic feet  $               1.93   $                          1.99  $                         2.05  
Next 74,000 cubic feet                   1.48                               1.53  1.58  
Next 68,000 cubic feet                   1.19                               1.23  1.27  
Over 146,000 cubic feet                   1.01                               1.04  1.07  

(B)   Service charge.  Each user is subject to the following service charge per month which is 
added to the volume charge in excess of a minimum use. 

   Phase I Phase II Phase III
5/8 inch meter $                   2.98 $                3.07 $                         3.16 
3/4 inch meter 3.27 3.37 3.47 
1 inch meter                       4.01                               4.14  4.26  

1 1/2 inch meter                       6.10                               6.30  6.48  
2 inch meter                       9.01                               9.30  9.58  
3 inch meter                     17.34                             17.91  18.44  
4 inch meter                     29.04                             30.00  30.88  
6 inch meter                     62.41                             64.46  66.36  
8 inch meter                   109.12                           112.70  116.03  

(C)   Minimum charge.  Each user shall pay a minimum charge according to the following meter 
size for which the user will be entitled to the quantity of water shown for each month. This charge 
includes the monthly service charge listed in division (B) of this section. 



Phase I Phase II Phase III
5/8 inch meter  $                 10.70   $                        11.05  $                       11.38  
3/4 inch meter                     14.85                            15.34  15.79  
1 inch meter                     23.32                            24.08  24.79  

1 1/2 inch meter 44.71 46.18 47.55 
2 inch meter 70.79 73.12 75.28 
3 inch meter 124.19 128.27 132.07 
4 inch meter 195.14 201.56 207.51 
6 inch meter 376.62 389.00 400.50 
8 inch meter 601.07 620.83 639.18 

(D)   Municipal and public fire hydrants. 

Each user shall pay a charge according to the following meter size as shown below. 

   Phase I Phase II Phase III
5/8 inch meter $                    3.65 $                3.77 $                          3.88
3/4 inch meter 4.01 4.14 4.26
1 inch meter 5.10 5.27 5.43

1 1/4 inch meter 5.83 6.02 6.20
1 1/2 inch meter 6.57 6.79 6.99

2 inch meter 10.58 10.93 11.25
3 inch meter 40.11 41.43 42.65
4 inch meter 51.07 52.75 54.31
6 inch meter 76.60 79.11 81.45
8 inch meter 105.77 109.25 112.48

(E)   Private fire hydrants - per hydrant:

   Phase I Phase II Phase III
Per Hydrant  $                 37.19   $                        38.41  $                         9.55  

(F) Private fire protection service (automatic sprinkler system):

Line Size (in inches) Phase I Phase II Phase III 
2 inch connection $                  4.10  $                         4.23 $                         4.35 
4 inch connection 16.72  17.27 17.78 
6 inch connection 37.19  38.41 39.55 
8 inch connection 66.20  68.38 70.40 

10 inch connection 103.40  106.80 109.96 
12 inch connection 148.76  153.65 158.19 

(F) Temporary users.  Water furnished to temporary users, such as contractors, shall be charged 
on the basis of the metered rates as metered or estimated by the utility manager. 

[Balance of page is intentionally blank.]  



APPENDIX B 

Schedule of Nonrecurring Charges for the City of Elkhart Water Utility

Schedule of Nonrecurring Charges

Insufficient payment charge $15.00

Recording/release of water liens
   Liens are for assessment and tap contracts only

$63.00

Hourly rate, minimum 1 hour1 $38.00

After hours service call, minimum $114.00

Visit to reconnect service
(turned off for cause) 

$38.00

Bacteriological analysis $40.00

Fill swimming pool $165.00

Permanent disconnection permit $250.00

New customer deposit $54.30

Meter testing (5/8" - 1") $76.00

Damaged or lost meters At cost

3" Fire hydrant meter and backflow deposit $3,600.00

Fire hydrant use, metered fee See metered rates

Fire hydrant use, unmetered water fee $76.65/per hour 

Fee for illegal use of hydrant:  
   The fee for illegal use of hydrant will be $900, plus recovery of charges for the amount 
of water stolen.  Stolen water charges will be calculated using the utility's approved 
metered rates and charges. The amount of water stolen will be estimated by the utility's 
superintendent on a per incident basis. This fee does not eliminate any criminal liability 
associated with the theft of the water.

Repair Time and materials
    -   Labor will be charged at $38.00/hour during regular hours and $57.00/hour for 
overtime. 
    -   Materials will be charged according to materials bid plus 20% handling fee. 
    -   Equipment will be charged according to established equipment charges. 

Tap fees 

   Up to and including 1" $900.00

   For taps greater than 1" Actual cost 

[Balance of page is intentionally blank.] 

  



So ORDAINED this ______ day of ____________________, ______. 

________________________________
  Arvis Dawson 

President of the Common Council
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Debra D. Barrett, City Clerk 

 
 
PRESENTED to the Mayor by me this ________ day of ___________, _______, at 

a.m./p.m.

_______________________________
Debra D. Barrett, City Clerk 

Approved by me this ______ day of ____________________, _____. 

_______________________________
Rod Roberson, Mayor

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Debra D. Barrett, City Clerk 



Elkhart Fire Rodney Dale
500 East Street     Fire Chief 
Elkhart, IN 46516 

Kristi Sommer 
Phone: (574) 293-8931  Assistant Fire Chief 
Fax: (574) 522-1023 
Fire.Admin@Elkhartfire.org 

Memorandum

To: Arvis Dawson, President, Elkhart City Council 

From: Rodney Dale, Fire Chief, Elkhart Fire Department

Date: March 17th, 2025 

Subject: Request for Appropriation for New Fire Station No. 6 

The Elkhart Fire Department requests a $8,984,000 appropriation for the construction of our new 
Fire Station No. 6. The new facility is critical for enhancing our emergency response capabilities 
and ensuring the safety and well-being of our community. 

As you are aware, the current Fire Station No. 6 is outdated and lacks the necessary 
infrastructure to support our growing team and advanced firefighting equipment. The new fire 
station will not only provide improved facilities for our firefighters but also include state-of-the-
art equipment and technology to better serve the residents of Elkhart. 

We have already completed the preliminary planning and design phases, and construction bids 
were opened on March 4, 2025. Securing the appropriation will enable us to move forward with 
the construction as planned and avoid any delays that could impact our ability to respond 
effectively to emergencies. 

Thank you for your consideration. 



Proposed Ordinance 25-O-09 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING EIGHT MILLION NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY-
FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS ($8,984,000.00) FROM THE GENERAL FUND FOR 

THE NEW FIRE STATION SIX (6)
___________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the Elkhart City Fire Station Number Six (6), currently located at Bristol 

Street and Osolo Road, requires replacement due to its insufficient capacity to accommodate 

modern firefighting equipment and operational needs; and 

WHEREAS, a newly constructed Fire Station Number 6, situated at 2650 Ada Drive (south 

of County Road 6 and east of Jeanwood Drive) would enhance the Fire Department’s ability to 

serve both the residential and industrial areas in the northeastern parts of City, being strategically 

located for improved response times and service coverage; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the project is estimated to be Eight Million Nine Hundred Eighty-

Four Thousand Dollars ($8,984,000.00), based upon the bids recently received by the Board of 

Public Works and Utilities; and

WHEREAS, the Administration requests that the Common Council of the City of Elkhart 

appropriate the sum of Eight Million Nine Hundred Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars

($8,984,000.00) from the General Fund for the construction of a new Fire Station 6; and  

WHEREAS, the General Fund contains funds sufficient and appropriate for the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA, THAT:

Section 1.  The amount of Eight Million Nine Hundred Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars

($8,984,000.00) from the General Fund and assigned to the following account line: 

Account No.       Buildings & Structures   $ 8,984,000.00 



Section 2.  The Common Council has fixed the ____ day of ________________, _____, at 

6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers, as the date, time and place when the Common Council will 

consider and determine the appropriation, and all taxpayers and interested persons will have the 

opportunity to appear and express their views. 

Section 3.  This Ordinance shall be in effect from and after its passage by the Common 

Council and approval by the Mayor according to law. 

SO ORDAINED this   day of ,  . 

    
  Arvis Dawson
  President of the Common Council

ATTEST: 

  
Debra D. Barrett, City Clerk

PRESENTED to the Mayor by me this  day of   ,   

at_________ a.m./p.m.  

   
 Debra D. Barrett, City Clerk 

Approved by me this day of , .

    
  Rod Roberson, Mayor

ATTEST: 

  
Debra D. Barrett, City Clerk

















Rod Roberson 
Mayor

Michael Huber
Director of Development Services 

Development Services 
Community Development 

Economic Development 
Planning Services 

Redevelopment 
229 S. Second St. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 
574.294.5471 

Fax: 574.295.7501 

DATE: March 17, 2024 

TO: Elkhart Common Council Members 

FROM: Mike Huber, Director of Development Services 

RE: Tax Phase-in Application for Worldwide Foam  

Background 

Worldwide Foam is a supplier and producer of foam products and adhesives. They service the automotive 
industry and major retail chains, supplying companies all around the country. Worldwide Foam’s 
headquarters is located at 1806 Conant Street in Elkhart.  

Private Investment 

Worldwide Foam plans to invest $2,843,470 in personal property equipment. This is projected to create 56 
new jobs, with an average annual salary of $59,477.  

Upon approval, the project would be phased in over five years. The table below highlights the planned 
investments.  

Calendar Year 2025 2026 2027 Total
Manufacturing 
equipment 

$2,443,470 $150,000 $150,000 $2,743,470

Research and 
Development 
equipment

$25,000 $25,000 $50,000

Logistics 
Distribution 
equipment 

Information 
Technology 
equipment 

$25,000 $25,000 $50,000

Total $2,468,470 $200,000 $175,000 $2,843,470



Calendar Year 2025 2026 2027 Total
Management 1 1
Professional/Technical 1 1
Sales   
Office/Administrative 
Support 

3  3

Production 
Supervision 

1 1

Production 15 33 48
Maintenance 1 1  2
Other   
Total 18 38 56

Recommendation 

Our staff, with support from the EDC, is recommending a five-year personal property tax phase-in.  
 
 



Page 1 of 5 

Proposed Resolution No. 25-R-05

RESOLUTION NO. R_______

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKHART, 
INDIANA, DECLARING A CERTAIN AREA TO BE AN ECONOMIC 

REVITALIZATION AREA FOR THE PURPOSE OF GRANTING TAX PHASE-IN 
BENEFITS TO JACOBS AND THOMPSON LTD, DBA WORLDWIDE FOAM \ CJSB 

PROPERTIES INC. 

WHEREAS, Indiana Code 6-1.1-12.1 (the “Act”) authorizes the Common Council of the 
City of Elkhart, Indiana (“Common Council”) to designate an area within the territorial boundaries 
of the City of Elkhart, Indiana as an economic revitalization area, as that term is defined in Section 
1 of the Act, for the purpose of allowing certain qualified businesses the right to receive deductions 
from the assessed value of improvements made to real property and personal property located in 
the economic revitalization area; and 

WHEREAS, Jacobs and Thompson LTD dba Worldwide Foam \ CJSB Properties Inc., 
(hereinafter the “Applicant\Property Owner”) filed an application with the City of Elkhart, 
requesting that the real estate described in Exhibit A attached to this Resolution (the “Area”) be 
designated as an economic revitalization area by the Common Council for the purpose of allowing 
a deduction from the assessed value of the manufacturing, research and development, and 
information technology equipment, invested to increase manufacturing production and capacity, 
to test materials, develop prototypes and automation (the “New Equipment”); and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant\Property Owner filed with the City a Statement of Benefits 
Form (SB-1/Personal Property) for the New Equipment (hereinafter the “Statement of Benefits”); 
and 

WHEREAS, prior to the installation of the New Equipment, the Area had become 
undesirable for, or impossible of, normal development and occupancy because of a lack of 
development, cessation of growth, deterioration of improvements or character of occupancy, age, 
obsolescence, substandard buildings, or other factors which have impaired values and prevented 
normal development and use of the property; and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has caused to be prepared maps and plats showing the 
boundaries of the Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has studied the Area and considered the 
Applicant\Property Owner’s request to designate the area as an economic revitalization area and 
the Statement of Benefits. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA, as follows: 

 



Page 2 of 5 

1. After considering the evidence presented at the public meeting conducted this date, 
the Common Council hereby finds and determines that:

A. the estimate of the cost of the New Equipment is reasonable for equipment 
of this type in this Area;

B. the estimate of the number of individuals who will be employed or whose 
employment will be retained in the Area can reasonably be expected to result from the 
installation of the New Equipment; 

C. the estimate of the annual salaries of those individuals who will be 
employed or whose employment will be retained in the Area can reasonably be expected 
to result from the installation of the New Equipment; 

D. the other benefits about which information was requested are benefits that 
can reasonably be expected to result from the installation of the New Equipment; and 

E. the totality of benefits is sufficient to justify declaring the Area as an 
economic revitalization area and allowing deductions in accordance with the Act.

2. The Area is hereby designated an economic revitalization area under Section 2.5 of 
the Act (the “ERA”) and subject to the requirements of the Act for the purpose of allowing a 
deduction from the assessed value of the New Equipment.  

3. The Administrative Assistant of the Common Council is hereby authorized and 
directed to make all filings necessary or desirable with the Elkhart County Assessor, to publish all 
notices required by the Act, and to take all other necessary actions to carry out the purposes and 
intent of this Resolution and to establish and designate the Area as an economic revitalization area.

4. The Administrative Assistant of the Common Council is further authorized and 
directed to file this Declaratory Resolution, together with any supporting information, with each 
of the officers of each taxing unit that has authority to levy property taxes in the Area, as provided 
in the Act. 

5. This Declaratory Resolution shall be submitted to the public for hearing and 
remonstrance as provided by the Act; and said public hearing shall be convened by the Common 
Council on April 7, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., at the City Hall, 229 S. Second Street, Elkhart, Indiana 
46516.

6. In accordance with Section 2.5(b) of the Act, the Common Council hereby 
determines that a deduction for the installation of the New Equipment under Section 4.5 of the Act 
shall be allowed for a period of five (5) years. The amount of the deduction for each eligible year 
shall be according to the following deduction schedule:



Page 3 of 5 

7. The deduction schedule shall commence in the first year that the New Equipment 
is installed in the Area designated as an ERA. The ERA shall expire on the last year of the 
applicable deduction schedule for the New Equipment, unless terminated sooner by action of the 
Common Council under the Act. 

8. The Common Council, with the consent of property owner, adopts and incorporates 
by reference into this Resolution the provisions of Indiana Code 6-1.1-12.1-14 and imposes a fee 
on the property owner equal to 15% of the tax savings as determined under Indiana Code 6-1.1-
12.1-14(c).

9. The Common Council hereby adopts and incorporates by reference the provisions 
of Indiana Code 6-1.1-12.1-12, providing that if the owner of the property or tenant of the property, 
ceases operations at the facility for which the deduction was granted, and the designating body 
finds that the Applicant/Property obtained the deduction by intentionally providing false 
information concerning the Applicant and/or property owner's plans to continue operations at the 
facility, the Applicant\Property Owner shall pay the amount determined by the County Auditor 
pursuant to law, after an appeal, if any. 

10. The Common Council’s designation of the Area as an economic revitalization area 
shall terminate after a public hearing held by the Common Council in accordance with the Act if 
the Applicant\Property Owner: 

A. fails to substantially install the proposed New Equipment, and create and 
maintain the level of benefits described in the Statement of Benefits;

B. fails to enter into a written agreement with the City of Elkhart confirming 
the Applicant\Owner’s commitment to comply with the project description, job creation 
and retention (and associated wage rates and salaries) figures contained in the Statement 
of Benefits; or 

C. fails to continue operations at the facility for which the deduction was 
granted; or 

D. intentionally provides false information to the designating body concerning 
the Applicant’s or property owner’s plans to continue operations at the facility. 

11. The provisions of this Declaratory Resolution shall be subject in all respects to the 
Act and any amendments thereto. 

12. This Declaratory Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 



Page 4 of 5 

Exhibit A

Description of Real Property
 

The real property comprising the Economic Revitalization Area is described as follows:

Property Address: 1806 Conant Street, Elkhart IN 46516 
 
Parcel Number(s): 20-06-03-328-005.000-012
 
Legal Description: 
 
LOT NUMBERED ONE (1) AS SET OUT IN THE RECORDED PLAT OF VANDELEIGH, AN 
ADDITION TO CONCORD TOWNSHIP, RECORDED JULY 19, 2019 IN PLAT BOOK 38, 
PAGE 89 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA.
  



Page 5 of 5 

 RESOLVED this ____ day of ________________, _______. 

____________________________________ 
Arvis Dawson

    President of the Common Council 
ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Debra D. Barrett, Elkhart City Clerk 

 PRESENTED to the Mayor by me this ________ day of ___________, ______, at  

________ a.m./p.m. 
_____________________________________ 
Debra D. Barrett, Elkhart City Clerk 

APPROVED by me this _______ day of ________________, _______. 

_____________________________________ 
Rod Roberson, Mayor for the City of Elkhart 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Debra D. Barrett, Elkhart City Clerk 

STATE OF INDIANA ) 
)   §

COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 

I, Debra D. Barrett, Clerk of the City of Elkhart, Indiana, do hereby certify the above is a 
full, true and complete copy of Resolution No. R-____, adopted by the Common Council on the
  day of   , _____ , by a vote of _______ AYES and _______ NAYS, and was 
approved and signed by the Mayor on the ______ day of    , ______ , and now 
remains on file and on record in my office. 

 
WITNESS my hand and the official seal of the City of Elkhart, Indiana, this ____ day of  

  , ______ . 
 

__________________________________ 
Debra D. Barrett, Elkhart City Clerk 

 







































































CITY OF ELKHART 
STORMWATER BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 Office of Public Works 
1201 S. Nappanee Street 

3:40 p.m., Thursday, December 19th, 2024 
In attendance: Jim Boyles, Joe Foy, Thomas McNicholas and Kayla Jewell in person. 

1. 
Motion by Thomas; Seconded by Boyles. 

2. STORMWATER UTILITY 
a. Construction Site Inspections  

The board discussed the list of site inspections and broke it down by initial stage of permitting, active 
construction, construction complete and Notice of Termination (NOT) approved. Communications 
with projects was also reviewed. 

b. Proposed 2025 Stormwater Board Meeting Schedule 
The board went over the proposed 2025 Stormwater Board meeting schedule and discussed any future 
potential conflicts. 

c. Proposed 2025 Stormwater Utility Budget 
Joe explained why there were increases in specific budget lines and discussed the remainder of the 
Stormwater Utility budget lines with the board.  

d. General Updates 
o
 Joe stated the 4th quarter facility inspections overall went well. 
o

Storage Rentals of America successfully obtained their Notice of Termination (NOT) so their 
permit is now closed.  

o Letter to Overholt Masonry 
Joe plans to make a phone call to Overholt Masonry after the holidays to discuss the training 
that was offered in the letter that was sent on 12/11/2024. 

e. Partnership update 
o Impervious data update 

There has been limited access to Impervious Data, but updates will be complete by 12/31.  
o 
 The SWCD is still preparing and planning for the upcoming workshop on March 4th-5th. 

3. OTHER BUSINESS/COMMUNICATION 
N/A 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
There was no public participation at this meeting. 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting concluded at 4:20pm. 

Next Stormwater Board meeting is February 20, 2025 at 3:30 pm. 


